## Cabinet

Meeting held on Monday, 16 December 2019 at 5.00 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX

## MINUTES

**Present:** Councillor Tony Newman (Chair);

Councillor Alison Butler, Stuart Collins, Hamida Ali, Alisa Flemming, Simon Hall, Stuart King (non-voting – Job Share), Oliver Lewis, Paul Scott (voting – Job Share) and Manju Shahul-Hameed

- Also Present: Councillors Tim Pollard, Jason Cummings, Jason Perry, Lynne Hale, Simon Hoar, Yvette Hopley, Vidhi Mohan, Helen Pollard, Sean Fitzsimons, Robert Ward, Clive Fraser, Margaret Bird, Simon Brew, Janet Campbell, Nina Degrads and Louisa Woodley
- Apologies: Councillor Jane Avis

## PART A

#### 111/19 Minutes of the previous meeting

The part A minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 18 November 2019 were agreed. The Leader of the Council signed the minutes as an accurate record.

112/19 Disclosure of Interests

There were none.

113/19 Urgent Business (If any)

There were no items of urgent business.

#### 114/19 Place Regeneration

The Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Regeneration (voting – Job Share) introduced the report stating that the intention of Place Plans was to work with local communities to support good growth in the area. Pilots had taken place in South Norwood, Kenley and Selsdon which had seen local communities work to develop and mould their areas.

In response to questions, Members were informed that Place Plans had facilitated areas being awarded large grants for projects as the groups were able to evidence community engagement. Additionally, the Cabinet Member noted that Place Plans could help areas to access CIL (Community Infrastructure Levy) and Section 106 funding for projects to develop the areas.

Whilst it was the desire that Place Plans were developed in each of the 16 areas of the borough, it was recognised that each Plan would be unique and it was the intention that the council would support all areas to develop their Plans.

The Cabinet Member for Economy & Jobs noted that the reports aligned with the Economic Strategy which had been agreed by Cabinet in November 2019 as it would support developing areas and bringing more jobs and opportunities to areas. Cabinet Members stated that it was their ambition to work together in a holistic manner to create a more inclusive Croydon.

The Leader of the Council delegated authority to the Cabinet to make the following decisions:

# RESOLVED: To

- 1. Endorse the Council's approach to place regeneration;
- 2. Delegate to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (Job Share) approvals of the Place Profiles before publication; and
- 3. Delegate the approval of the emerging Place Plans to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (Job Share) in consultation with the local elected members and key stakeholders for each 'place'.

# 115/19 Pan-London Dockless Vehicle Hire Byelaw

The Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Regeneration (nonvoting – Job Share) informed Members that dockless bikes had been introduced in parts of London from 2017, however there had been no means to regulate their use. Some boroughs had experienced issues with the bikes, including them being dumped, and to facilitate regulation across the capital it was proposed that a byelaw be introduced. The London Council's Transport & Environment Committee was to be delegated authority by all boroughs to make the byelaw to regulate dockless vehicles in London.

The Leader of the Council delegated authority to the Cabinet to make the following decisions:

**RESOLVED:** To recommend to Full Council that it resolves to

1. Agree to delegate authority to London Councils Transport and Environment Committee to make a byelaw to regulate dockless vehicles in Croydon; and

2. Authorise the Executive Director of Place to sign any necessary documents to give effect to Recommendation 1 above.

## 116/19 Addington Village Conservation Area Review - Adoption

Cabinet were informed that the council was constantly reviewing its conservation areas and the Addington Village Conservation Area had recently been reviewed. It was noted that the area had particular historic significance in the borough and that the Plan sought to not only recognise the village, but also the Palace, grounds and service buildings. It was proposed that the buildings be locally listed to protect them.

The Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Regeneration (voting – Job Share) stated that there had been a large amount of feedback received during the consultation and this had been listened to, including retaining the name of the conservation area.

Members thanked officers for the diligent work in reviewing the Plan and welcomed that feedback from residents had been incorporated within the Plan. It was noted that a great amount of the history of the area was included within the documentation, which had facilitated the development of history walks.

In response to Member questions, the Cabinet Member stated that the marquee was an ongoing planning issue and had remained in place beyond the temporary consent. Officers continued to work to ensure its removal. In terms of infill development within the area, the Cabinet Member stated that it was not the intention to restrict future development, however applications would be considered very carefully to ensure they fitted with the character of the local area.

The Leader of the Council delegated authority to the Cabinet to make the following decisions:

**RESOLVED:** To recommend that Council

- 1. Approve changes to the Addington Village Conservation Area boundary as set out in the report;
- 2. Adopt the Addington Village Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan (CAAMP) as a Supplementary Planning Document;
- Delegate to the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Regeneration (Job Share), the making of minor factual, editorial and image changes to the Addington Village CAAMP; and

4. Include the former Stables (Addington Palace Golf Clubhouse) and Stable Lodge on the Council's local list of buildings of special architectural or historic interest.

## 117/19 Quarter 2 Financial Performance 2019/20

The Leader of the Council congratulated officers for their ongoing work and in particular their work to report the chronic underfunding the council suffered from in terms of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC). Members were informed that the council would seek to reengage with Government Ministers, once known, as the underfunding was unsustainable.

The Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources recognised the hard work of officers to manage the financial pressures daily. It was noted that significant pressures were being experienced in the Health, Wellbeing & Adults department. In terms of services for over 65s, it had been noted that a number of social care self-funders had run out of funds and were now being supported. Furthermore, additional costs had occurred due to the success of the One Croydon Alliance, however officers were in negotiation with the NHS to establish whether the costs could be shared.

The pressures related to UASC were discussed as being significant as Croydon had four and a half times more children than Home Office guidelines suggested each borough should support. This additional pressure of £8.5m had a large knock on effect across the council, particularly for children services.

Lastly the Cabinet Member informed Members that the council was required to provide support to Looked After Children up to the age of 25; however this was not funded and so further increased the financial pressures experienced by the council.

The Leader of the Opposition confirmed the Opposition's support for the council's desire to get a fairer settlement in terms of UASC support and stated that they would support conversations with the new Minister, once confirmed. The Leader thanked the Opposition for their support and the support of the three Croydon MPs on the matter and expressed hope that a fairer settlement would be reached.

Members noted that there had been a large shift in the Health, Wellbeing & Adults finances since the Quarter 1 report and queried what plans were in place to mitigate the trend. The Cabinet Member stated that finance were working with officers from that department, however it was a department which was experiencing huge pressures and to mitigate the trend the council had undertaken robust negotiations with the NHS to ensure the Alliance was properly financed. Whilst the CCG had recognised the principle of the council's argument, an agreement was yet to be reached. Additionally, stringent measures had been put in place and

all in-year actions across the council were being reviewed as to whether savings could be accelerated.

In response to Member questions the Cabinet Member for Homes & Gateway Services stated that in-year budgets had been reduced and so not all posts had been filled. Remaining staff had been required to deliver the same service, however it was noted that it was not always possible and, as such, it was not always possible to ensure services such as collecting garage rents was 100%.

Members expressed hope that the new Local Government settlement would be announced before the New Year and that it would be fairer which would enable the council to deliver excellent services to the residents of Croydon.

The Leader of the Council delegated authority to the Cabinet to make the following decisions:

# RESOLVED: To

- Note the current revenue outturn forecast at the end of the second quarter of 2019/20 of £1.857m, before exceptional items of £8.550m, resulting in a total overspend of £10.407m;
- Note that the exceptional items of £8.5m relate to costs incurred by Croydon Council for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) and No Recourse To Public Funds (NRPF), due to woefully insufficient funding from the Home Office.
- 3. Note the ongoing engagement with and lobbying of Government by the Council for additional funding for Croydon, both in general terms and specifically Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children given Croydon's gateway status.
- 4. Note the HRA position of a £0.046m forecast underspend against budget.
- 5. Note the capital outturn projection of £278.6m, forecast to be an underspend of £160.8m against budget.

**RESOLVED:** To recommend to Council

- 1. The approval to increase to the capital programme by £2.660m as set out in Table 6.
- 2. The adoption of the lending criteria as set out in section 9 of this report.

# 118/19Investing in our Borough

The Leader of the Council delegated authority to the Cabinet to make the following decisions:

## **RESOLVED:** To note

1. The list of delegated award decisions made by the Director of Commissioning and Procurement, between 17/10/2019 – 15/11/2019.

## **RESOLVED:** To approve

- 2. That the Leader be recommended to delegate authority to the Cabinet Member for Families, Health & Social Care in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources to:
  - a. Approve the establishment of the Adult and Young People Social Care Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) and the award of contracts to providers to be initially appointed to the DPS.
  - b. Delegated authority to approve the future appointments to the DPS and award of individual call off contracts to providers for reasons set out in paragraph 4.2 of the report. These awards will be in line with the strategy approved by Cabinet on 10 July 2019 (ref CCB1498/19-20) and any awards made under this delegation will be notified in the standard contracts report at future Cabinet meetings.

# 119/19 Exclusion of the Press and Public

The item was not required.

The meeting ended at 5.36 pm